
 
 

 



 



 
Lake Land College 

Board of Trustees 
District No. 517 

Regular Meeting No. 616 
Monday, April 9, 2018, 6:00 p.m.  

Webb Hall 081, Mattoon  
Agenda 

 

I. Routine. 

 

A. Call to Order. 

 

B. Roll Call. 

 

C. Consent Item.  
(Any one member may remove an item from the consent item list simply by requesting 
the Chair to do so.  Items removed will be discussed and voted immediately following 
passage of the consent item.) 
 
Approval of the following: 

 
1. Minutes of March 12, 2018, Regular Meeting.  
2. Minutes of March 12, 2018, Closed Session. 
3. Agenda of April 9, 2018, Board of Trustees Meeting. 
4. Bills for Payment and Travel Expenses.  

This information will be presented by College administration for approval with full assurance by 
management it has been prepared in good faith to follow all applicable laws and board policy. For 
summary and details of bills refer to: 
http://www.lakeland.cc.il.us/col/board_minutes/download.cfm 

5. Destruction of Tape Recording of October 10, 2016, Closed Session and October 
26, 2016, Resource and Development Committee Meeting.  
 
 

II. Hearing of Citizens, Faculty and Staff. 

 

 

 

Board Book Page 3

http://www.lakeland.cc.il.us/col/board_minutes/download.cfm


Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Agenda – April 9, 2018 
Page 2 
 

 

III. Adjournment Sine Die.  

 

IV. Organization of the Board.  

 
A. Call to Order and Appointment of Secretary Pro Tem. 
B. Roll Call. 
C. Appointment of Chairperson Pro Tem. 
D. Appointment of Secretary Pro Tem. 
E. Election of Board Chair and Length of Term. 
F. Election of Board Vice Chair and Length of Term. 
G. Election of Board Secretary and Length of Term. 
H. Appointment of College Treasurer and Approval of Resolution No. 0418-011 for College 

Treasurer to Act as College Fiscal Agent. (Refer to Board Book Pages 25-27). 
 

V. Committee Reports.  
 
A. ICCTA/Legislative   Mr. Mike Sullivan 

Ms. Ann Deters 
B. Resource & Development  Ms. Doris Reynolds 

C. Finance    Ms. Ann Deters 
D. Buildings & Site   Mr. Bruce Owen 

E. Student Report   Mr. Charles Meaker 

F. President’s Report   Dr. Josh Bullock 

 

VI. Business Items. 

 

A. Non-Action Items. 

  Board Book 
Page 

Number(s) 
1.   Presentation of Business Partnership Award to The Equity of 

Effingham. 
 

2.   Quarterly Investment Report.   
3.   Faculty Focus on Advancing Student Success.  
4.   Phi Theta Kappa All-Illinois/All-USA Academic Team Nominees. 28 
5.   Recognition of Outgoing Student Trustee.   
6.   Naming Advisory Committee Recommendation for Renaming 

ZEB Hall. 
29-30 

7.   Calendar of Events. 31-33 

Board Book Page 4



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Agenda – April 9, 2018 
Page 3 
 

8.   Correspondence. 
 

 

 
B. Action Items. 

  Board Book 
Page 

Number(s) 
1.   Certification of Student Trustee and Sophomore Student 

Government Association Election Results. 
34-36 

2.   Approval of Proposed Revisions to Policy 06.45 – Faculty and 
Staff Research and Consulting and Adoption of Board Policy 
11.29 – Research by Internal or External Constituents. 

37-39 

3.   Acceptance of Reporting of February 2018 Financial Statements. 40-46 
4.   Approval of FY 2019 Salary Grades and Ranges Schedule for 

Administrative, Supervisory and Support Staff, Excluding 
Correctional Centers.  

47 

5.   Acceptance of Injection Molding Equipment Donation from 
College Foundation. 

48 

6.   Approval of Subway Contract Amendment. 49 
7.   Approval of Property, Casualty and Liability Insurance Renewal.  51-52 
8.   Approval of Resolution No. 0418-012 - Resolution setting forth 

and describing in detail claims heretofore authorized and allowed 
for proper community college purposes which are presently 
outstanding and unpaid, declaring the intention to avail of the 
provisions of Article 3A of the Public Community College Act of 
the State of Illinois, as amended, and to issue bonds for the 
purpose of paying claims against the District, and directing that 
notice of such intention be published as provided by law. 

53-67 

9.   Approval of Resolution No. 0418-013 - Resolution calling a public 
hearing concerning the intent of the Board of Trustees of the 
District to sell $17,000,000 Funding Bonds for the purpose of 
paying claims against the District. 

68-76 

10.   Approval of Human Resources Report. 77-80 
 

VII.  Other Business. 

 

VIII.  Adjournment. 

Board Book Page 5



Lake Land College 
Board of Trustees 

District No. 517 

 
Regular Board Meeting No. 615 

Webb Hall, Room 081, Mattoon, IL 
March 12, 2018 

 
Minutes   

 
Call to Order. 
 
Chair Storm called the March 12, 2018, regular meeting of the Lake Land College Board of 
Trustees to order at 6:00 p.m. in Webb Hall, room 081, Mattoon.  
 
Roll Call. 

 
Trustees Physically Present: Mr. Gary Cadwell; Ms. Ann Deters, Secretary; Ms. Doris 
Reynolds, Vice Chair; Ms. Meg Steward; Mr. David Storm, Chair; Mr. Mike Sullivan and Mr. 
Charles Meaker, Student Trustee. 

 
Trustees Absent: Mr. Bruce Owen. 

 
Others Present: Dr. Jonathan Bullock, President; Mr. Jon Althaus, Vice President for 
Academic Services; Mr. Bryan Gleckler, Vice President for Business Services; Ms. Jean Anne 
Grunloh, Senior Executive to the President; Dr. Jim Hull, Vice President for Workforce 
Solutions and Community Education; and members of the staff, community and media.    
 
Approval of Consent Items.  
 
Trustee Sullivan moved and Trustee Cadwell seconded to approve the following consent 
items:  
   

1. Approval of Minutes of February 12, 2018, Regular Meeting.  
2. Approval of Agenda of March 12, 2018, Board of Trustees Meeting. 
3. Bills for Payment and Travel Expenses.  

This information was presented by College administration for approval with full 
assurance by management they were prepared in good faith to follow all applicable 
laws and Board policy. Summary and bills include: 

Education Fund $        218,477.81 

Building Fund $          31,481.60 

Board Book Page 6



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – March 12, 2018 
Page 2 of 19
 

Site & Construction Fund $                        - 

Bond & Interest Fund $            2,200.00 

Auxiliary Services Fund $          19,067.28 
Restricted Purposes Fund $        270,831.66 

Working Cash Fund $                        -           

Audit Fund $                        -             
Liability Insurance Fund $              19,668.99 

Student Accts Receivables $        446,653.45 

Total $     1,008,380.79 
 

For details of bills refer to:                                            
http://www.lakeland.cc.il.us/col/board_minutes/download.cfm 
 

4. Destruction of Tape Recording of September 12, 2016, Closed Session. 
  
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Hearing of Citizens, Faculty, and Staff.  
 
There were no public comments.  
 
Committee Reports. 
 
ICCTA/Legislative. 
 
Trustee Sullivan gave an update from the March 10, 2018, ICCTA conference he attended 
along with President Bullock and Trustee Deters. He provided a handout summarizing the 
conference topics and actions taken by the Board. A few of the actions taken by the ICCTA 
Board which he highlighted include that ICCTA:  

o Voted to oppose Governor Rauner’s recommendation to shift the employer share of 
public employee pensions to local community college districts;  

o Directed ICCTA staff to investigate possible regularity changes to the Illinois Public 
Funds Investment Act in order to expand investment options for community colleges;  

o Authorized ICCTA staff to take appropriate action to address inconsistencies in dual-
credit offerings between four-year and out-of-state institutions and Illinois community 
colleges.  

 
 
 
 

Board Book Page 7

http://www.lakeland.cc.il.us/col/board_minutes/download.cfm


Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – March 12, 2018 
Page 3 of 19
 

 
Resource & Development. 
 
Trustee Reynolds, Committee Chair, said the Committee met on March 8, 2018, for an in-
depth review of items which will appear later in the agenda. She said she would comment on 
these items as they are discussed according to the agenda.  
 
Finance. 
 
Trustee Deters, Committee Chair, said the Committee met on March 8, 2018, for an in-depth 
review of items which will appear later in the agenda. She said she would comment on these 
items as they are discussed according to the agenda.  
 
Buildings & Site. 
 
Chair Storm, on behalf of Buildings and Site Committee Chair Owen, said the Committee had 
not met since the last regular Board meeting and he had no report at this time.  
 
Student Report. 
 
Student Trustee Meaker highlighted recent events hosted by the Student Ambassadors and 
Student Government Association (SGA). He also highlighted upcoming elections for Student 
Trustee and SGA.  
 
President’s Report. 
 
Dr. Bullock said: 

 Congratulations to Coach Dave Johnson and the Laker Women’s Basketball team 

that finished runner-up in the Region 24 tournament. The team represented Lake 
Land proudly and player Avery Jackson was recognized on the All Region 24 team.  

 Kudos to Lake Land Ag students who sponsored an online alumni pig sale in which 
sales of the 17 show pigs consigned by Lake Land Ag alumni totaled over $21,000. 
The Ag Division received a percentage of the sales. Over 1,000 people visited the 
online site and there were 72 bidders in total.  The pigs were sold to buyers from 
Arizona, Texas, Nebraska, Indiana, Illinois and Ohio. 

 To date, the College has received 86.5% of the FY 2017 state credit hour 
reimbursement and equalization appropriation (received $9.0 million of $10.4 million 
appropriated), and 87.0% of FY 2018 appropriations (received $7.6 million of $8.7 
million appropriated).  

 The College has also received 91.3% of the FY2017 funding for Illinois Department 
of Corrections and Illinois Department of Juvenile Justice programs (received nearly 

Board Book Page 8



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – March 12, 2018 
Page 4 of 19
 

$5.5 million on $6.0 million invoiced). All invoiced funds for FY 2018 remain 
outstanding. 

Business Items. 
 
Non-action Items. 
 
Faculty Focus on Advancing Student Success.   
 
Trustees heard a presentation from Mr. Scott Rhine, IT Instructor/Program Coordinator, on the 
IT Innovation Lab. He displayed various innovative products under development including a 
prosthetic arm for a three-year old girl, a prosthetic finger for a Lake Land student and 3-D 
printed “Laker” cookies cutters. 
 
Appointment of Naming Advisory Committee. 
 
Trustees reviewed a request by Trustee Sullivan to rename the Zero Energy Building (ZEB) as 
Lensink Hall in honor of the outstanding service and professional contributions to the College 
by Mr. Scott Lensink, the College’s sixth president. Per Board Policy 11.10, Chair Storm 
appointed the following individuals to a Naming Advisory Committee in consideration of this 
request: Trustee Bruce Owen, Trustee Meg Steward, Trustee Doris Reynolds, President 
Bullock as ex-officio, and Ms. Jackie Joines, Executive Director for College Advancement, as 
ex-officio. Chair Storm said the Naming Advisory Committee will plan to meet in April 2018. 
 
Proposed Revisions to Policy 06.45 – Faculty and Staff Research and Consulting and 
Proposed Adoption of Board Policy 11.29 – Research by Internal or External 
Constituents. 
 
Trustees reviewed a recommendation from Dr. Lynn Breer, Director of Institutional Research, 
on behalf of the College’s Research Review Board to adopt Policy 11.29 - Research by 
Internal or External Constituents to ensure that all human subject research requests align with 
the Department of Health and Human Services Protection of Human Subjects Act and to revise 
Policy 06.45 - Faculty and Staff Research and Consulting to define this policy as focusing 
solely on consulting. 
 
Dr. Bullock said the proposed adoption of Policy 11.29 and proposed revisions to Policy 06.45 
were submitted as first reading and will be brought to the Board for action during the April 2018 
regular Board meeting.  
 
Calendar of Events. 
 
Trustees received a calendar of upcoming events.  
 
Correspondence.  
 
Trustees reviewed two items of correspondence. 

Board Book Page 9



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – March 12, 2018 
Page 5 of 19
 

 
 
 
Action Items. 
 
Naming of Business/Industry Partnership Award Recipient. 
  
Trustees heard a recommendation from Mr. Jon Althaus, Vice President for Academic 
Services, to name The Equity in Effingham as the College’s recipient of the 2018 
Business/Industry Partnership Award.  
 
Trustee Reynolds moved and Trustee Sullivan seconded to approve the naming of The Equity 
in Effingham as the College’s recipient of the 2018 Business/Industry Partnership Award for 
submission to ICCTA in consideration of the state-level award.  
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Naming of Full-Time Faculty Award Recipient. 
 
Trustees heard a recommendation from Mr. Althaus to name Mr. Scott Rhine, IT 
Instructor/Program Coordinator, IT-Network Admin, as the College’s recipient of the 2018 
ICCTA Full-Time Outstanding Faculty Member Award.  
 
Trustee Deters moved and Trustee Reynolds seconded to approve the naming of Mr. Scott 
Rhine, IT Instructor/Program Coordinator, IT-Network Admin, as the College’s recipient of the 
2018 ICCTA Full-Time Outstanding Faculty Member Award for submission to ICCTA in 
consideration of the state-level award.   
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Naming of Part-Time Faculty Award Recipient. 
 
Trustees heard a recommendation from Mr. Althaus to name Ms. Ellen Trainor, Agriculture 
Instructor, as the College’s recipient of the 2018 ICCTA Part-Time Outstanding Faculty 
Member Award.  
 
Trustee Sullivan moved and Trustee Cadwell seconded to approve the naming of Ms. Ellen 
Trainor, Agriculture Instructor, as the College’s recipient of the 2018 ICCTA Part-Time 

Board Book Page 10



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – March 12, 2018 
Page 6 of 19
 

Outstanding Faculty Member for submission to ICCTA in consideration of the state-level 
award.  
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Approval of Tuition and Fees Rates effective Summer and Fall 2018. 
 
Trustees heard a recommendation from Dr. Bullock and Mr. Bryan Gleckler, Vice President for 
Business Services, to approve proposed tuition and fees rates for Summer and Fall 2018 
including a $3.00 increase in the tuition rate per credit hour and an increase of $1.00 per credit 
hour service fee. Trustees also reviewed a proposed Dual Credit options/rate structure. Mr. 
Gleckler said that Lake Land has been able to maintain its tuition levels for the past two years, 
not increasing tuition rates since Summer/Fall 2016. He said the proposed recommendation 
aligns with inflationary factors and despite the increase the College will remain as one of the 
most affordable educational options in the state.  
 
Trustee Deters said the Finance Committee met recently for an in-depth review of this 
recommendation and the Committee’s consensus was to recommend to the Board approval of 
the rates and fees as presented. She also said that Dr. Tina Stovall, Vice President for Student 
Services, reported having recently met with members of the Student Government Association 
to discuss the proposed tuition and fees rates and that there were no questions or concerns 
expressed by students during this meeting. 
 
Trustee Deters moved and Trustee Steward seconded to approve as presented the Summer 
and Fall 2018 Tuition and Fees Rates to include a $3.00 increase in the tuition rate per credit 
hour, an increase of $1.00 per credit hour in the service fee and a Dual Credit options/rate 
structure.   
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Acceptance of Reporting of January 2018 Financial Statements. 
 
Trustees reviewed the January 2018 Financial Statements and a memorandum from Mr. Bryan 
Gleckler, Vice President for Business Services, highlighting variances for the statements. This 
information included a summary of all operational expenditures (Funds 1 and 2) year to date 
as compared to budgeted amounts, a salary and benefits summary. Trustees heard a brief 
overview from Mr. Gleckler regarding variances in the revenue and expenditures to date in FY 
2018. 

Board Book Page 11



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – March 12, 2018 
Page 7 of 19
 

 
Trustee Deters said the Finance Committee met recently for an in-depth review of this 
information and the Committee’s consensus was to recommend to the Board approval of the 
financial statements. 
 
Trustee Deters moved and Trustee Sullivan seconded to approve the January 2018 Financial 
Statements as presented.  
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Approval of Bid for Outdoor Digital Marquee Sign.  
 
Trustees heard a recommendation from Mr. Gleckler to approve the bid from T. Ham Sign, Inc. 
of Mt. Vernon in the amount of $48,709.61 for the design and purchase of an outdoor digital 
marquee sign. Trustees reviewed the bid tabulation sheet detailing bids received from five 
different vendors and the proposal from T. Ham Sign, Inc. 
 
Trustee Deters said the Finance Committee met recently for an in-depth review of this 
recommendation and the Committee’s consensus was to recommend to the Board approval of 
the bid from T. Ham Sign, Inc. as presented. 
 
Trustee Steward moved and Trustee Cadwell seconded to approve as presented the bid from 
T. Ham Sign, Inc. of Mt. Vernon, Illinois, in the amount of $48,709.61 for the design and 
purchase of an outdoor digital marquee sign. 
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Approval of Bid for GPS Rover and Controller Equipment.  
 
Trustees reviewed a recommendation from Mr. Josh Fulk, Civil Engineering Technology 
Program Coordinator, to approve the bid from Seiler Instrument of St. Louis, Missouri, in the 
amount of $27,666.59 for the purchase of GPS equipment to be used in the Civil Engineering 
Technology Program. Trustees heard a recommendation from Mr. Gleckler to approve this bid. 
Mr. Gleckler said funding from the Perkins Program will pay for this purchase.  
 
Trustee Deters said the Finance Committee met recently for an in-depth review of this 
recommendation and the Committee’s consensus was to recommend to the Board approval of 
the bid from Seiler Instrument for GPS equipment as presented. 

Board Book Page 12



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – March 12, 2018 
Page 8 of 19
 

 
Trustee Deters moved and Trustee Steward seconded to approve as presented the bid from 
Seiler Instrument of St. Louis, Missouri, in the amount of $27,666.59 for the purchase of GPS 
equipment.   
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Approval of Bid for Wide Path Mower Purchase.  
 
Trustees heard a recommendation from Mr. Gleckler to approve the bid from MTI Distributing 
of Berkeley, Missouri, in the amount of $52,422.65 for the purchase of a Toro Groundsmaster 
wide path mower. Trustees reviewed the bid tabulation sheet detailing the bids received from 
two vendors.   
 
Trustee Deters said the Finance Committee met recently for an in-depth review of this 
recommendation and the Committee’s consensus was to recommend to the Board approval of 
the bid from MTI Distributing for the purchase of the wide path mower as presented. 
 
Trustee Cadwell moved and Trustee Sullivan seconded to approve as presented the bid from 
MTI Distributing of Berkeley, Missouri, in the amount of $52,422.65 for the purchase of a Toro 
Groundsmaster wide path mower.  
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Acceptance of Addendum for CTS Performance Contract and Project Management 
Services.  
 

*The agenda item was noted that the Addendum could be viewed at: 
https://www.lakelandcollege.edu/col/board_minutes/minutes_index.cfm 

 
Trustees heard a recommendation from Dr. Bullock and Mr. Gleckler to approve the above-
referenced Addendum of the contract with The CTS Group of St. Louis, Missouri, to define the 
additional work to be completed by CTS for the renovation, addition and utility upgrades of the 
facility that will become the proposed “Board and Administration Center.” Dr. Bullock said this 
action follows information presented to the Board in February 2018 in which the Board granted 
approval of the project to renovate the Child Care Facility. Mr. Gleckler highlighted various 
aspects of the Addendum with CTS for their performance contract and project management 
services.  

Board Book Page 13

https://www.lakelandcollege.edu/col/board_minutes/minutes_index.cfm


Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – March 12, 2018 
Page 9 of 19
 

 
Trustee Sullivan moved and Trustee Deters seconded to accept as presented the Addendum 
with The CTS Group of St. Louis, Missouri, for a Performance Contract and Project 
Management Services of the renovation/addition of the current Child Care Facility.        

There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Approval of Resolution No. 0318-009 Authorizing and Providing for an Installment 
Purchase Agreement for the Purpose of Paying the Cost of Improving Community 
College Buildings for the Community College District, and for the Issue of 
Approximately $16,025,000 General Obligation Debt Certificates (Limited Tax), 
Series 2018A, of the Community College District Evidencing the Rights to Payment 
under Said Agreement, Providing for the Security for and Means of Payment under Said 
Agreement of Said Certificates, and Authorizing the Sale of Said Certificates to the 
Purchaser Thereof.  
 

The Agenda was noted that the Resolution could be viewed at:  
https://www.lakelandcollege.edu/col/board_minutes/minutes_index.cfm  

Trustees heard a recommendation from Dr. Bullock and Mr. Gleckler to approve the above-
referenced Resolution. Mr. Gleckler said that the administration has been working with legal 
counsel and PMA Securities for the steps required to fund the renovations/additions for the 
Child Care Facility and Luther Student Center projects as discussed with the Board since last 
fall. Mr. Gleckler said this Resolution creates the debt and approves the sale of debt 
certificates, both of which are required as part of the bonding process. Trustees learned that 
additional actions will be brought to the Board for approval each month through June 2017 to 
complete this process.  
 
Trustee Cadwell moved and Student Trustee Meaker seconded to approve as presented 
Resolution No. 0318-009 - Authorizing and Providing for an Installment Purchase Agreement 
for the Purpose of Paying the Cost of Improving Community College Buildings for the 
Community College District, and for the Issue of Approximately $16,025,000 General 
Obligation Debt Certificates (Limited Tax), Series 2018A, of the Community College District 
Evidencing the Rights to Payment under Said Agreement, Providing for the Security for and 
Means of Payment under Said Agreement of Said Certificates, and Authorizing the Sale of 
Said Certificates to the Purchaser Thereof.  [A full and complete copy of the Resolution is 
attached to and part of these minutes.]     
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 

Board Book Page 14

https://www.lakelandcollege.edu/col/board_minutes/minutes_index.cfm


Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – March 12, 2018 
Page 10 of 19
 

Motion carried.   
 
Closed Session. 
 
6:58 p.m. – Trustee Sullivan moved and Trustee Steward seconded to convene to closed 
session, Pursuant to Chapter 5 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes Section 120/2(c)(1) [Illinois 
General Assembly 2017 et. Seq.], to discuss the employment, appointment, compensation, 
performance or dismissal of specific employees.   
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Return to Open Session – Roll Call. 
 
7:51 p.m.  
 
Trustees Physically Present: Mr. Gary Cadwell; Ms. Ann Deters, Secretary; Ms. Doris 
Reynolds, Vice-Chair; Ms. Meg Steward; Mr. Dave Storm, Chair; Mr. Mike Sullivan; and Mr. 
Charles Meaker, Student Trustee. 
 
Trustees Absent: Trustee Owen. 
 
Approval of Faculty Tenure Recommendations as Discussed in Closed Session. 
 
Trustee Reynolds said the Resource and Development Committee met recently for an in-depth 
review of these recommendations and the Committee’s consensus was to recommend to the 
Board granting of tenure to eight faculty members as noted in the motion below. 
 
Following discussion on the topic in closed session, Trustee Reynolds moved and Trustee 
Cadwell seconded to approve granting of tenure for the following eight employees effective 
Fall 2018:  Mr. Daniel Allen, Physics Instructor; Mr. Joshua Fulk, Civil Engineering Technology 
Instructor/Coordinator; Ms. Cassie Koester, Nursing Instructor; Mr. James Munger, IT Web 
Technology Instructor/Coordinator; Ms. Rakhsha Nasseripour, Physics Instructor; Ms. Katie 
Parrish, Sociology Instructor; Ms. Kimberly Smithenry, Nursing Instructor; and Ms. Ryan 
Wildman, Agriculture Business Instructor.  
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
 

Board Book Page 15



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – March 12, 2018 
Page 11 of 19
 

Approval of Reappointment of Tenured and Non-Tendered Faculty Members as 
Discussed in Closed Session. 
 
Trustee Reynolds said the Resource and Development Committee met recently for an in-depth 
review of this recommendation and the Committee’s consensus was to recommend to the 
Board the reappointment of tenured and non-tenured faculty members as noted in the motion 
below. 
 
Following discussion on the topic in closed session, Trustee Reynolds moved and Trustee 
Cadwell seconded to approve the reappointment of tenured and non-tenured faculty members 
for the 2018/19 academic year as follows:  
 
 
 First Year Non-Tenure Division 
 Beulah Uphoff Allied Health (Spring 2018) 
 
 Second Year Non-Tenure Division 
 Jarrett Dunn Math and Science  
 Laura Paruleski Allied Health (Spring 2017) 
 Tanille Ulm Social Science and Education 
 Molly Yeske Allied Health 
  
 Third Year Non-Tenure Division 
 Haylee Brandt Allied Health 
 Robert Miller Agriculture (Spring 2016) 
 Jordan Rauch Agriculture  
 
 Fourth Year Tenure Division 

Daniel Allen Math and Science 
Joshua Fulk Technology  

 Cassie Koester Allied Health  
 Rakhasha Nasseripour Math and Science 
 Katie Parrish Social Science and Education 
 Kimberly Smithenry Allied Health 
 Ryan Wildman Agriculture 
 
 Fifth Year Tenure Division 

James Munger  Business  
  

 Continued Tenure Status Division 
Iffat Ali Math and Science  
Lara Bacino Althaus Social Science and Education 

 Dyke Barkley Agriculture 
Cheryl Beam Allied Health 
Michael Beavers Technology 
Jodi Birdwell Humanities and Communication 

Board Book Page 16



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – March 12, 2018 
Page 12 of 19
 

Kathy Black Business 
Tara Blaser Humanities and Communication 
Andrea Bright Counseling 
Dewayne Brown Vandalia Correctional Center 

 Cathy Bunton Social Science and Education 
Bryan Burrell Counseling 
Krista Burrell Counseling 
Dion Buzzard Technology  
Nancy Caldwell Humanities and Communication 
Tom Caldwell Humanities and Communication 
Greg Capitosti Math and Science  
John Carpenter Business  
Michael Ben Cohan Humanities and Communication 
Marc DalPonte Math and Science 
Kathleen Daugherty Business  

 Kimberly Davis Social Science and Education 
Angela Davison Business 
Laura Deters Allied Health  
Suzett Doty Math and Science  

 Danielle Downs Financial Aid and Veteran Services 
Allen Drake Agriculture 
Scott Drone-Silvers Library 
Amy Duckett Business  
Lisa Earp Business  
Terri Fields Social Science and Education  
Kay Foreman Allied Health  
Andy Gaines Counseling 
Judy Garner Humanities and Communication 
John Gentry Technology  

 Tisha Goad Allied Health 
Matt Greider Social Science and Education 
Neal Haarman Technology  
Karla Hardiek Allied Health 
Emily Hartke Counseling 
Elizabeth Hartrich Allied Health  
Shelle Hartzel Math and Science  

 Helen Hendren Social Science and Education 
 Dustin Heuerman Social Science and Education 
 Sarah Hill Library 
 Kristen Holsapple Allied Health  

Shannon Hood Allied Health   
Salisa Hortenstine-Olmsted Humanities and Communication  
Lucinda Horton Math and Science  
Brenda Hunzinger Math and Science  

 Charles Jarrell Social Science and Education 
David Johnson Social Science and Education 

Board Book Page 17



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – March 12, 2018 
Page 13 of 19
 

Bambi Jones Math and Science  
Nichole Jones Allied Health  
Kris Kersey Technology  
Tynia Kessler Business 
Leo Kitten Technology  

 Ty Knebel Vandalia Correctional Center 
 Matt Landrus Humanities and Communication 

Jon Lebold Business  
Gary Lindley Technology  

 Katie Lotz Social Science and Education  
Brian Lynch Social Science and Education  
Valerie Lynch Student Life 
Brian Madlem Technology  
Walter McHenry Math and Science 
Jennifer Melton Counseling 
Margaret Merry-Niebrugge Allied Health 
Claire Miller Math and Science 
Kevin Miller Technology  
Nathan Miller Vandalia Correctional Center 
Martha Mioux Allied Health  
Tina Moore Career Services 

 Russell Neu Agriculture  
Robert Newell Humanities and Communication  
Mark Niemerg Agriculture  
Heather Nohren Counseling 

 Maria Nohren Allied Health 
Ikemefuna Nwosu Math and Science 
Ryan Orrick Agriculture 
Cynthia Phipps Business 
Cassandra Porter Allied Health 
Gregory Powers Humanities and Communication 
Anthony Reinhart Agriculture  

 Casey Reynolds Humanities and Communication 
Scott Rhine Business  
Eva Ritchey Humanities and Communication 
M. Shane Rogers Social Science and Education 
Mike Rudibaugh Math and Science  
Marcy Satterwhite Business 
David Seiler Social Science and Education  

 Cheryl Staley Business  
Peggy Strange Business  

 Erin Swingler Allied Health  
 Edward Thomas Humanities and Communication  
 Deborah Thomason Allied Health  
 Joe Tillman Technology  

David Turnbull Math and Science  

Board Book Page 18



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – March 12, 2018 
Page 14 of 19
 

Lori Walk Technology  
Rick Watson Technology 
Tara Veach Watson Humanities and Communication 

 Janet Waymoth Allied Health  
 Jeff White Math and Science  

Nicole Zeller Allied Health  
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Approval of Appointment of Division Chairs as Discussed in Closed Session. 
 
Trustee Reynolds said the Resource and Development Committee met recently for an in-depth 
review of these recommendations and the Committee’s consensus was to recommend to the 
Board the reappointment of six division chairs as noted in the motion below.  
 
Following discussion on the topic in closed session, Trustee Reynolds moved and Trustee 
Deters seconded to approve the reappointment of six division chairs for Fall 2018 and Spring 
2019 semesters as follows:  

 Ryan Orrick, Agriculture Division 
 Karla Hardiek, Allied Health Division 
 Kathy Black, Business Division 
 Salisa Hortenstine-Olmsted, Humanities and Communications Division 
 Ike Nwosu, Math and Science Division 
 Charles Jarrell, Social Science and Education Division 

 
Trustees learned the administration will recommend an appointment for a Technology Division 
Chair at an upcoming meeting.  
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Approval of Resolution No. 0318-010 to Approve Second Addendum to Employment 
Agreement with Dr. Jonathan “Josh” Bullock, Lake Land College President, Extending 
the Term through June 30, 2021, Clarifying an Existing Benefit, and as Discussed in 
Closed Session.  
 

The agenda item was noted that a complete copy of the proposed resolution and second 
addendum was available at: 

Board Book Page 19



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – March 12, 2018 
Page 15 of 19
 

https://www.lakelandcollege.edu/col/board_minutes/minutes_index.cfm or by contacting the 
College’s Office of the President at 217-234-5222.  
 
The agenda item was also noted that copies of the President’s original employment 
contract and the first addendum were available at: 
https://www.lakelandcollege.edu/col/board_minutes/employment_contract.cfm or by 
contacting the College’s Office of the President at 217-234-5222. 

 
Following discussion on the topic in closed session, Trustee Deters moved and Trustee 
Reynolds seconded to approve as presented Resolution No. 0318-010 - Approving Second 
Addendum to Employment Agreement with Dr. Jonathan “Josh” Bullock, Lake Land College 
President, Extending the Term through June 30, 2021, Clarifying an Existing Benefit. [A full 
and complete copy of the Resolution is attached to and part of these minutes.]     
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Approval of Recommendation to Terminate Employment of a Commercial Custodian 
Instructor at Graham Correctional Center as Discussed in Closed Session. 
 
Following discussion on the topic in closed session, Trustee Sullivan moved and Trustee 
Reynolds seconded to approve the recommendation to terminate the employment of Mr. Ron 
Lawrence, a Commercial Custodian Instructor at Graham Correctional Center, effective 
immediately. 
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Approval of Request for a General Leave of Absence Without Pay by a Career 
Technology Instructor at Southwestern Illinois Correctional Center as Discussed in 
Closed Session.    
 
Following discussion on the topic in closed session, Trustee Cadwell moved and Trustee 
Steward seconded to deny the request for an additional general leave of absence without pay 
through March 25, 2018, by Ms. Abigail Kerkhoff, a Career Technology Instructor at 
Southwestern Illinois Correctional Center, and require Ms. Kerkhoff to return to work on 
Thursday, March 15, 2018.   
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  

Board Book Page 20

https://www.lakelandcollege.edu/col/board_minutes/minutes_index.cfm
https://www.lakelandcollege.edu/col/board_minutes/employment_contract.cfm


Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – March 12, 2018 
Page 16 of 19
 

Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Approval of Human Resources Report as Discussed in Closed Session.   
 
Trustees reviewed the proposed Human Resources Report. Dr. Bullock highlighted a proposed 
full-time, grant-funded position for the TRiO Destination College program.   
 
Following discussion on this item in closed session, Trustee Reynolds motioned and Trustee 
Sullivan seconded to approve the following Human Resources Report: 
 
The following employee is recommended for leave 
 
 Baxter, William FMLA 2/22/18-3/17/18 
 
Additional Appointments 
  The following employees are recommended for additional appointments 
      Position Effective Date 
 
Part-time 
    Bush, Kodey Tutor-Disability Services - Student 01/17/2018 
    Primary Position is Tutor - Student Lrng Asst             
    Bush, Kodey Tutor-Student Community Education 01/17/2018 
    Primary Position is Tutor - Student Lrng Asst             
    Huang, Hsin Hui Tutor-Student Community Education 12/21/2017 
    Primary Position is Counseling - Clerical Worker             
    Huang, Hsin Hui Tutor - Student Learning Assistance  12/21/2017 
    Primary Position is Counseling - Clerical Worker             
    Oliver, Steven Tutor-Disability Services - Student 02/09/2018 
    Primary Position is Tutor-Disability Services            
    Oliver, Steven Tutor-Student Community Education 02/09/2018 
    Primary Position is Tutor-Disability Services          
    Oliver, Steven Tutor - Student Learning Assistance 02/09/2018 
   Primary Position is Tutor-Disability Services            
    Padrick, Lynae Human Resources Assistant 03/16/2018 
    Primary Position is Career Services Assistant                
    Paruleski, Laura Allied Health Adjunct Faculty ADN Sub 02/09/2018 
    Primary Position is Nursing Instructor         
               
Part-time - Grant Funded 
    Bush, Kodey Tutor-Student Carl Perkins 01/17/2018 
    Primary Position is Tutor - Student Lrng Asst             
    Huang, Hsin Hui Tutor-Student Carl Perkins 12/21/2017 
    Primary Position is Counseling - Clerical Worker             
    Oliver, Steven Tutor-Student Carl Perkins 02/09/2018 

Board Book Page 21



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – March 12, 2018 
Page 17 of 19
 

    Primary Position is Tutor-Disability Services          
 
End Additional Appointments 
  The following employees are ending their additional appointment 
      Position Effective Date 
 Part-time 
    Oliver, Steven  Work N Learn - Technology 09/10/2017 
 Reynolds, Gregory  Adult Education Instructor 02/05/2018 
    Satterfield, Ryan  Wind Turbine Technician 12/17/2017 
    Strohl, Cassidy  Bookstore Rushworker 02/05/2018 
 
Position Recommendation 

The following position has been recommended by the Lake Land College President’s 
Cabinet 
 
Outreach Advisor and Office Coordinator for TRIO Destination College  3/12/18 
Support staff (Level 13).   

  
New Hire-Employees 
  The following employees are recommended for hire 
      Position Effective Date 
Unpaid Volunteer 
    Clatfelter, Aleah Dual Credit Instructor 02/27/2018 
    Hank, Gage Ag Volunteer 02/01/2018 
    Pryor, Justin ISS Unpaid Intern 02/26/2018 
    Schumaker, Zackery Ag Volunteer 02/01/2018 
    Seward, Larissa ECIDC Executive Director 02/01/2018 
    Wilson, Chisum Tech Team Volunteer 02/23/2018 
 
Full-time - Grant Funded 
    Boylen, Alana Correctional Commercial Cooking Instructor 01/29/2018 
  Western IL CC 
 McGee, Patrick Correctional Career Technology Instructor 03/02/2018 
  Hill CC 
 Patera, Richard Associate Dean of Correctional Programs 04/09/2018 
  Shawnee CC 
Part-time 
    Boulu, Bernie International Student Ambassador 02/02/2018 
    Bush, Kodey Tutor - Student Learning Assistance  01/17/2018 
    Crossen, Kaitlyn Fitness Center Specialist 01/30/2018 
    Gabel, Kennedy Financial Aid Outreach Coordinator 02/26/2018 
    Gossett, Larry Adjunct Faculty Technology  02/16/2018 
    Starwalt, William Newspaper Editor - Student Newspaper 01/08/2018 
    Wediko, Emmanuel International Student Ambassador 02/02/2018 
    Westfall, Emily Counseling - Clerical Worker 01/23/2018 
    

Board Book Page 22



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – March 12, 2018 
Page 18 of 19
 

College Work Study 
 Black, Zachary College Work Study – Social Science 02/09/2018 
  
Terminations/Resignations 
  The following employees are terminating employment 
      Position Effective Date 
Unpaid Volunteer 
    Koester, Jay Dual Credit Instructor (deceased) 03/01/2018 
 
Full-time Grant Funded 
 Kesler, Lynndi Corr Career Technology Instr-Big Muddy CC 03/02/2018 
 Lawrence, Ron Corr Commercial Custodian-Graham CC 03/12/2018 
 Runde, Erica Employment Specialist 03/12/2018 
 
Part-time 
    Austin, Hollie Web Programmer 02/16/2018 
    Black, Thomas Pathways Classroom Assistant 01/11/2018 
    Elam, Kasey Bookstore Rush Worker 02/05/2018 
    Gatons, Grace Bookstore Rush Worker 02/05/2018 
 Grant, Nancy Lab Supervisor 03/12/2018 
    Hall, Cassandra Custodian 02/23/2018 
    Hostetter, Robin Print Shop Technician Assist 08/17/2017 
    Jones, Kayla Human Resources Assistant 02/16/2018 
    Mahlmeister, Katherine Bookstore Rush Worker 02/05/2018 
    Miller, Pamela Adjunct Faculty Social Science 07/22/2016 
    Nino Pardo, Wilson International Stu Ambassador 12/31/2017 
    Patton, Anna CTPD Staff Dev Presenter 02/14/2018 
    Vergara, Mandy Cosmetology Clinical Instructor 02/01/2018 
    White, Barbara Bookstore Rush Worker 02/05/2018 
    Willenborg, Meghan Bookstore Rush Worker 02/05/2018 
  
Transfers/Promotions 
  The following employees are recommended for a change in position 
      Position Effective Date 
Full-time 
    Blazich, Jerri Administrative Asst to College Advancement 02/15/2018 
    Transferring From TRIO Office Coordinator (pt) 
 
Full-time - Grant Funded 
    Harrington, Elizabeth Assistant to Dean of Corrections 03/19/2018 
   Transferring From Adm Asst to Dean of Corrections  
 Laumbattus, Doug Associate Dean Murphysboro Re-entry 04/02/2018 
  Transferring From Associate Dean Pinckneyville CC 
 Owens, Serenna Associate Dean Pinckneyville CC 04/03/2018 

Transferring From Corr Horticulture Instr  
Southwestern IL CC 

Board Book Page 23



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – March 12, 2018 
Page 19 of 19
 

Patera, Richard Associate Dean Shawnee CC 04/09/2018 
 Transferring From Corr Career Tech Instr  
                                      Vienna CC 
 

There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Other Business. (Non-action) 
 
There was no additional discussion.  
 
Adjournment. 
 
Student Trustee Meaker moved and Trustee Deters seconded to adjourn the March 12, 2018, 
meeting of the Lake Land College Board of Trustees at 7:59 p.m.   
Motion carried with unanimous voice vote approval. 
 
Approved by: 
 
________________________                      __________________________ 
Mr. Dave Storm, Board Chair     Ms. Ann Deters Board Secretary

*Note – See Board of Trustees web page for any referenced attachments to these minutes.   
https://www.lakelandcollege.edu/col/board_minutes/  

Board Book Page 24

https://www.lakelandcollege.edu/col/board_minutes/


Page 1 of 3 
 

Lake Land College  
Board of Trustees 

 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER: 0418-011                                         DATE: April 9, 2018 

 
 

RESOLUTION FOR APPOINTMENT OF COLLEGE TREASURER AND FOR COLLEGE 
TREASURER TO ACT AS COLLEGE FISCAL AGENT 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of Lake Land College, Community College District No. 

517 (the “College”) is authorized by the Illinois Public Community College Act to oversee the 
financial affairs of the College; and 

WHEREAS, bank accounts are established in the name of the College for depositing and 
investing monies; and 

WHEREAS, daily financial transactions are conducted to support the business needs of the 
College; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has elected Bryan Gleckler as Treasurer to oversee the 
business of the College; and 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of Community College District 
No. 517, Counties of Christian, Clark, Clay, Coles, Crawford, Cumberland, Douglas, Edgar, 
Effingham, Fayette, Jasper, Macon, Montgomery, Moultrie and Shelby, State of Illinois (the 
“Board”) as follows: 

Section 1: The Treasurer be authorized and directed to open bank accounts in the name 
of the College. Endorse checks and orders for the payment of money or otherwise withdraw or 
transfer funds on deposit. 

Section 2: The Treasurer be authorized and directed to borrow money on behalf and in 
the name of the College, sign, execute and deliver promissory notes or other evidences of 
indebtedness.  The Treasurer be authorized and directed to endorse, assign, transfer, mortgage 
or pledge property now owned or hereafter acquired by the College as security for sums 
borrowed. 

Section 3: The Treasurer and President sign all documents of promissory notes or other 
evidence of indebtedness. 

Board Book Page 25



Page 2 of 3 
 

Section 4: The Treasurer be authorized and directed to enter into a written lease for the 
purpose of renting, maintaining, accessing and terminating a Safe Deposit Box on behalf and in 
the name of the College. 

ADOPTED this 9th day of April, 2018 by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 
     BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
     LAKE LAND COLLEGE 
     COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 517 
     COUNTIES OF CHRISTIAN, CLARK, CLAY,  
     COLES, CRAWFORD, CUMBERLAND, 
      DOUGLAS, EDGAR, EFFINGHAM, FAYETTE, 

      JASPER, MACON, MONTGOMERY, 
       MOULTRIE, AND SHELBY 

 STATE OF ILLINOIS  
 
 
        

     By: __________________________________ 

       Chair     
  

Attest: ___________________________ 
    Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Board Book Page 26



Page 3 of 3 
 

SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATE 

 

 I, ________________________, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified 

and acting Secretary of the Board of Trustees of Lake Land College, Community College District 

No. 517, Counties of Christian, Clark, Clay, Coles, Crawford, Cumberland, Douglas, Edgar, 

Effingham, Fayette, Jasper, Macon, Montgomery, Moultrie, and Shelby, State of Illinois, (the 

“College District”) and as such official, I am the keeper of the records and files of the Board of 

Trustees of said College District. 

 I do further certify that the foregoing Resolution for Appointment of College Treasurer and 

for College Treasurer to Act as College Fiscal Agent is a true, correct and complete copy of that 

Resolution as adopted by the Board of Trustees of the College District at a meeting held on the 9th 

day of April, 2018. 

 I do further certify that the deliberations of the members of the Board of Trustees on the 

adoption of the Resolution were taken openly; that the vote on the adoption of the Resolution was 

taken openly; that the meeting was held at a specified time and place convenient to the public; that 

notice of the meeting was duly given to all newspapers, radio or television stations, and other news 

media requesting notice; and that the meeting was called and held in strict compliance with the 

provisions of the Illinois Open Meetings Act, as amended, and the applicable provisions of the 

Public Community College Act of the State of Illinois, and that this Board of Trustees has complied 

with all of the applicable provisions of said Acts and with all the procedural rules of the Board of 

Trustees. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official signature, this 9th day of April, 2018. 

 

      _________________________________ 
      Secretary, Board of Trustees 

 

       

   

 

Board Book Page 27



 

 

Board Book Page 28



Board Book Page 29



Board Book Page 30



______________ 
Revised  3/19/18 

 

 

 

Calendar of Events 
 
Thursday, April 5, 2018 Buildings and Site Committee Meeting  
 1 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 2 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 
Monday, April 9, 2018 5 p.m. – Board Dinner – Webb 081 
 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Webb 081 
 
Thursday, April 12, 2018 4 – 5 p.m. Lake Land College Foundation Scholarship Reception 
 Field House 

5:30 p.m. Lake Land College Foundation Donor Recognition 
Reception at the Mattoon Golf & Country Club 
 

Friday, April 13, 2018                           Principals, Deans and Counselors Meeting 
                                                             8:30 a.m. – 1:30 p.m. Webb 081 

Wednesday, April 25, 2018                  Student Recognition Banquet 
                                                             6:00 p.m. Field House 
 
Sunday, April 29, 2018 Laker Athletic Gala 
 Field House 
 More details to come 
 
Wednesday, May 2, 2018 Spring Carnival 
 10 a.m. - 1 p.m. 
 Field House 
 
Friday, May 4, 2018 Johnston Music Festival 
 Field House 
 More details to come 
 
Thursday, May 10, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting  
 1 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 2 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 
Friday, May 11, 2018 51st Annual Lake Land College Commencement Ceremony 
 5:30 p.m. Dinner in the West Building Atrium 
 7:30 p.m. Commencement Ceremony Field House  
 
Monday, May 14, 2018 3 p.m. – Board Retreat – Webb Hall 081    
 5 p.m. – Board Dinner – Webb 081 
 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Webb 081 
 
Fridays, May 18 - August 10, 2018 Summer Hours of Operation. College is closed on Fridays.  
 
Friday, May 18, 2018  11:30 a.m. Lake Land College Foundation Golf Classic 
 Meadowview Golf Course 
 
Thursday, June 7, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting  

Board Book Page 31



______________ 
Revised  3/19/18 

 

 

 

 1 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 2 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 
Monday, June 11, 2018 5 p.m. – Board Dinner – Webb 081 
 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Webb 081 
 
Thursday, July 12, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting  
 1 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 2 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 
Monday, July 16, 2018 5 p.m. – Board Dinner – Webb 081 
(Third Monday of Month) 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Webb 081 
 
Thursday, August 9, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting  
 1 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 2 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 
Monday, August 13, 2018 5 p.m. – Board Dinner – Kluthe Center 
 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Kluthe Center, Room 220 
 
Thursday, September 6, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting  
 1 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 2 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 
Monday, September 10, 2018 5 p.m. – Board Dinner – Webb 081 
 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Webb 081 
 
Thursday, October 4, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting  
 1 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 2 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 
Monday, October 8, 2018 5 p.m. – Board Dinner – Webb 081 
 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Webb 081 
 
Thursday, November 8, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting  
 1 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 2 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 
 
Monday, November 12, 2018 5 p.m. – Board Dinner – Webb 081 
 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Webb 081 
 
Thursday, December 6, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting  
 1 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 2 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 

Board Book Page 32



______________ 
Revised  3/19/18 

 

 

 

Monday, December 10, 2018 5 p.m. – Board Dinner – Webb 081 
 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Webb 081 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board Book Page 33



 

 

Board Book Page 34



Board Book Page 35



Board Book Page 36



 

MEMO 
To:  Josh Bullock 

FROM:  Research Review Board 

CC:  Jean Anne Grunloh 

Date:  February 5, 2018 

RE:   Research Policy for Lake Land College 

In their 2015 Report of a Comprehensive Evaluation Visit, the Higher Learning Commission provided 
the following recommendation to Lake Land College: “Evidence was presented through discussions 
with faculty and staff that an Institutional Review Board (IRB), while not required, would be useful to 
faculty at Lake Land College. Opportunities for many federal grants would be enhanced if an IRB were 
in place; and the concept is supported by both faculty and administration.”  
 
To address this HLC recommendation, the Director of Institutional Research discussed the potential 
need for an IRB with various leadership teams and administrators across the college. Based on the 
feedback provided during these discussions, it was determined that since Lake Land is not a research 
based institution that routinely conducts research with students, a traditional IRB is not necessary. 
However, they wanted to see a Research Review Board (RRB) implemented at the College.  
 
One of the charges for the RRB is to monitor the need for an IRB which would involve research using 
human subjects. After reviewing the Board Policy Manual, the RRB discovered policy 06.45 Faculty and 
Staff Research and Consulting. The RRB is proposing to modify policy 06.45 to focus solely on 
consulting and adding policy 11.29 to focus solely on Human Subject research. Making these changes  
provides proper protection for both students and staff in any future research endeavors, as well as 
clarify distinctions between “Human Subjects Research” and “consulting”. 
 
After reviewing other community college policies including Lane Community College, Community 
College of Beaver County, and Westchester Community College and the Department of Health and 
Human Services Human Subjects Act, the RRB is recommending the attached policy titled Human 
Subject Research by Internal or External Constituents be added to Lake Land College’s Board Policy 
Manual as policy 11.29. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board Book Page 37



     
 
     

      11.29 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
 

Human Subject Research by Internal or External Constituents 
 

 
 
 

Any internal or external researchers requesting the collection of data 
involving human subjects currently or previously enrolled, employed, 
or otherwise associated with Lake Land College need to follow the 
Authorization to Conduct Research protocols and submit the 
appropriate documentation to the Research Review Board. This will 
ensure that all research requests align with the Department of Health 
and Human Services Protection of Human Subjects Act1. Research 
conducted by College staff, for purposes of conducting College 
business, is exempt from this Policy. The College’s President or 
appropriate Vice President will have final approval of all research 
requests.  

 

 

 
 
 

                                                            
1 Protection of Human Subjects (45CFR46) 
 
Adopted  
 

Board Book Page 38



06.45 
 

Faculty and Staff Research and Consulting 
 
 
Faculty and staff research projects to be conducted using Lake Land 
College students or staff in testing, questionnaires, interviews, etc. are to 
be coordinated through the office of the Vice President for Academic 
Services. 
 
Faculty and staff who do consulting work for external businesses, 
agencies, etc. during contractual service days and who receive full salary 
for such days will refund to the College any remuneration or honorarium 
received.  With permission of the College President, such remuneration 
or honorarium may be donated to the Lake Land College Foundation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised October 13, 2003 
Revised 
 
Page 1 of 1 

Board Book Page 39



Board Book Page 40



Board Book Page 41



Board Book Page 42



Board Book Page 43



Board Book Page 44



Board Book Page 45



Board Book Page 46



Board Book Page 47



Board Book Page 48



Board Book Page 49



Board Book Page 50



Board Book Page 51



Board Book Page 52



Funding Resolution of Intent 
2261394 

MINUTES of a regular public meeting of the Board of 
Trustees of Community College District No. 517, Counties 
of Coles, Christian, Clark, Clay, Crawford, Cumberland, 
Douglas, Edgar, Effingham, Fayette, Jasper, Macon, 
Montgomery, Moultrie and Shelby and State of Illinois, held 
in Webb Hall Room 081, 5001 Lake Land Boulevard, 
Mattoon, Illinois, in said Community College District at 
6:00 o’clock P.M, on the 9th day of April, 2018. 

 * * * 

The meeting was called to order by the Chair, and upon the roll being called, 

Dave Storm, the Chair, and the following Trustees were physically present at said 

location:   

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________ and ________________________ (non-voting student 

trustee). 

The following Trustees were allowed by a majority of the Trustees of the Board 

of Trustees in accordance with and to the extent allowed by rules adopted by the 

Board of Trustees to attend the meeting by video or audio conference: ______________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

No Trustee was not permitted to attend the meeting by video or audio 

conference. 

The following Trustees were absent and did not participate in the meeting in 

any manner or to any extent whatsoever: _________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

The Chair announced that in view of the current financial condition of the 

District, the Board of Trustees would consider the adoption of a resolution setting forth 

Board Book Page 53



 -2- 

and describing in detail outstanding claims against the District, declaring its intention 

to issue funding bonds to pay claims against the District, and directing that notice of 

such intention be published. 

Whereupon Trustee ____________________ presented and the Secretary read by 

title a resolution as follows, copies of which were available to all in attendance at said 

meeting who requested a copy: 

Board Book Page 54



 

Lake Land College 
Board of Trustees 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 0418-012   DATE:  April 9, 2018 

 

RESOLUTION setting forth and describing in detail claims 
heretofore authorized and allowed for proper community 
college purposes which are presently outstanding and 
unpaid, declaring the intention to avail of the provisions of 
Article 3A of the Public Community College Act of the State 
of Illinois, as amended, and to issue bonds for the purpose 
of paying claims against Community College District 
No. 517, Counties of Coles, Christian, Clark, Clay, Crawford, 
Cumberland, Douglas, Edgar, Effingham, Fayette, Jasper, 
Macon, Montgomery, Moultrie and Shelby and State of 
Illinois, and directing that notice of such intention be 
published as provided by law. 

 * * * 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Article 3A of the Public Community 

College Act of the State of Illinois, as amended (the “Act”), the Board of Trustees (the 

“Board”) of Community College District No. 517, Counties of Coles, Christian, Clark, 

Clay, Crawford, Cumberland, Douglas, Edgar, Effingham, Fayette, Jasper, Macon, 

Montgomery, Moultrie and Shelby and State of Illinois (the “District”), is authorized to 

issue bonds to pay claims against the District; and 

WHEREAS, the District has presently outstanding and unpaid claims in the 

aggregate amount of $17,000,000 (the “Claims”), all of the Claims having been 

heretofore authorized and allowed for proper community college purposes; and 

Board Book Page 55



-2- 

WHEREAS, there are not sufficient funds on hand and available with which to pay 

the Claims, and the Board of Trustees of the District has determined and does hereby 

determine that it is necessary and in the best interests of the District that the Claims be 

paid from proceeds of bonds in the principal amount of $17,000,000 (the “Bonds”); 

and 

WHEREAS, before the Bonds can be issued pursuant to the Act, the Board must 

examine and consider the Claims and must adopt a resolution declaring the Claims to 

be authorized and allowed for proper community college purposes, set forth and 

describe in detail the Claims, declare its intention to issue the Bonds for the purpose of 

paying the Claims and direct that notice of such intention to issue the Bonds be given 

as provided by law; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has examined and considered the Claims: 

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It and It Is Hereby Resolved by the Board of Trustees of 

Community College District No. 517, Counties of Coles, Christian, Clark, Clay, 

Crawford, Cumberland, Douglas, Edgar, Effingham, Fayette, Jasper, Macon, 

Montgomery, Moultrie and Shelby and State of Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. Incorporation of Preambles.  The Board hereby finds that all of the 

recitals contained in the preambles to this Resolution are full, true and correct and 

does incorporate them into this Resolution by this reference. 

 Section 2. The Claims.  The Claims are described in Exhibit A hereto, and it is 

hereby found, determined and declared that the Claims are presently outstanding and 

unpaid, were heretofore authorized and allowed for proper community college 

purposes and constitute valid and binding obligations of the District. 

Board Book Page 56



-3- 

 Section 3. Declaration of Intent.  The Board does hereby determine and 

declare its intention to avail the provisions of Article 3A of the Act and to issue Bonds 

in the amount of $17,000,000 for the purpose of paying the Claims. 

 Section 4. Notice of Intent.  In accordance with the provisions of Section 5 of 

the Local Government Debt Reform Act of the State of Illinois, as amended, notice of 

said intention to avail of the provisions of Article 3A of the Act and to issue the Bonds 

shall be given by publication of such notice once in Journal Gazette &-Times Courier, 

the same being a newspaper of general circulation in the District. 

 Section 5. Form of Notice.  The notice of intention to issue the Bonds shall be 

in substantially the following form: 

Board Book Page 57



-4- 

NOTICE OF INTENTION OF  
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 517 

COUNTIES OF COLES, CHRISTIAN, CLARK, CLAY, CRAWFORD,  
CUMBERLAND, DOUGLAS, EDGAR, EFFINGHAM, FAYETTE, JASPER, MACON,  

MONTGOMERY, MOULTRIE AND SHELBY AND STATE OF ILLINOIS 
TO ISSUE $17,000,000 FUNDING BONDS 

PUBLIC NOTICE is hereby given that on the 9th day of April, 2018, the Board of 

Trustees (the “Board”) of Community College District No. 517, Counties of Coles, 

Christian, Clark, Clay, Crawford, Cumberland, Douglas, Edgar, Effingham, Fayette, 

Jasper, Macon, Montgomery, Moultrie and Shelby and State of Illinois (the “District”), 

adopted a resolution declaring its intention and determination to issue bonds in the 

aggregate amount of $17,000,000 for the purpose of paying presently outstanding and 

unpaid claims against the District, all of which unpaid claims have been heretofore 

authorized and allowed for proper community college purposes and it is the intention 

of the Board to avail of the provisions of Article 3A (Sections 3A-6 to 3A-9, inclusive) of 

the Public Community College Act of the State of Illinois, and all laws amendatory 

thereof and supplementary thereto, and to issue said bonds for the purpose of paying 

such unpaid claims. 

A petition may be filed with the Secretary of the Board (the “Secretary”) within 

thirty (30) days after the date of publication of this notice, signed by not less than 

12,028 voters of the District, said number of voters being equal to ten per cent (10%) 

of the registered voters of the District, requesting that the proposition to issue said 

bonds as authorized by the provisions of said Article 20 be submitted to the voters of 

the District.  If such petition is filed with the Secretary within thirty (30) days after the 

date of publication of this notice an election on the proposition to issue said bonds 

shall be held on the 6th day of November, 2018.  The Circuit Court may declare that an 

emergency referendum should be held prior to said election date pursuant to the 

Board Book Page 58



-5- 

provisions of Section 2A-1.4 of the Election Code of the State of Illinois, as amended.  

If no such petition is filed within said thirty (30) day period, then the District shall 

thereafter be authorized to issue said bonds for the purpose hereinabove provided. 

By order of the Board of Trustees of Community College District No. 517, 

Counties of Coles, Christian, Clark, Clay, Crawford, Cumberland, Douglas, Edgar, 

Effingham, Fayette, Jasper, Macon, Montgomery, Moultrie and Shelby and State of 

Illinois. 

DATED this 9th day of April, 2018. 

Ann Deters Dave Storm
Secretary, Board of Trustees, 
Community College District No. 517, 
Counties of Coles, Christian, Clark, Clay, 
Crawford, Cumberland, Douglas, Edgar, 
Effingham, Fayette, Jasper, Macon, 
Montgomery, Moultrie and Shelby and 
State of Illinois 

Chair, Board of Trustees, 
Community College District No. 517, 
Counties of Coles, Christian, Clark, Clay, 
Crawford, Cumberland, Douglas, Edgar, 
Effingham, Fayette, Jasper, Macon, 
Montgomery, Moultrie and Shelby and 
State of Illinois

 
 

Board Book Page 59



-6- 

 Section 6. Further Proceedings.  If no petition signed by the requisite number 

of voters is filed with the Secretary of the Board within thirty (30) days after the date of 

the publication of such notice of intention to issue the Bonds, the Board shall, by 

appropriate proceedings to be hereafter taken, fix the details concerning the issue of 

the Bonds and provide for the levy of a direct annual tax to pay the principal and 

interest on the same. 

 Section 7. Severability.  If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this 

Resolution shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or 

unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of 

the remaining provisions of this Resolution. 

 Section 8. Repealer and Effective Date.  All resolutions and parts of resolutions 

in conflict herewith be and the same are hereby repealed and that this Resolution be in 

full force and effect forthwith upon its adoption. 

Adopted April 9, 2018. 

_______________________________________ 
Chair, Board of Trustees 

_______________________________________ 
Secretary, Board of Trustees 

Board Book Page 60



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

CLAIMS 

$16,025,000 General Obligation Debt Certificates (Limited Tax), Series 2018A, 
dated March 29, 2018 (principal, interest and costs of issuing the funding bonds). 

Board Book Page 61



 

Trustee _______________________ moved and Trustee 

________________________ seconded the motion that said resolution as presented and 

read by title be adopted. 

After a full and complete discussion thereof, the Chair directed the Secretary to 

call the roll for a vote upon the motion to adopt said resolution. 

Upon the roll being called, the following Trustees voted AYE:   ________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

and the following Trustees voted NAY:______________________________________ 

Whereupon the Chair declared the motion carried and said resolution adopted, 

and in open meeting approved and signed said resolution and directed the Secretary 

to record the same in full in the records of Community College District No. 517, 

Counties of Coles, Christian, Clark, Clay, Crawford, Cumberland, Douglas, Edgar, 

Effingham, Fayette, Jasper, Macon, Montgomery, Moultrie and Shelby and State of 

Illinois, which was done. 

Other business not pertinent to the adoption of said resolution was duly 

transacted at said meeting. 

Upon motion duly made, seconded and carried, the meeting was adjourned. 

_______________________________________ 
Secretary, Board of Trustees 

 

Board Book Page 62



 

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
 )  SS 
COUNTY OF COLES ) 

CERTIFICATION OF MINUTES AND RESOLUTION 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting 
Secretary of the Board of Trustees of Community College District No. 517, Counties of 
Coles, Christian, Clark, Clay, Crawford, Cumberland, Douglas, Edgar, Effingham, 
Fayette, Jasper, Macon, Montgomery, Moultrie and Shelby and State of Illinois (the 
“Board”), and that as such official I am the keeper of the records and files of the Board. 

I do further certify that the foregoing constitutes a full, true and complete 
transcript of the minutes of the meeting of the Board held on the 9th day of April, 
2018, insofar as same relates to the adoption of a resolution entitled: 

RESOLUTION setting forth and describing in detail claims 
heretofore authorized and allowed for proper community 
college purposes which are presently outstanding and 
unpaid, declaring the intention to avail of the provisions of 
Article 3A of the Public Community College Act of the State 
of Illinois, as amended, and to issue bonds for the purpose 
of paying claims against Community College District 
No. 517, Counties of Coles, Christian, Clark, Clay, Crawford, 
Cumberland, Douglas, Edgar, Effingham, Fayette, Jasper, 
Macon, Montgomery, Moultrie and Shelby and State of 
Illinois, and directing that notice of such intention be 
published as provided by law. 

a true, correct and complete copy of which said resolution as adopted at said meeting 
appears in the foregoing transcript of the minutes of said meeting. 

I do further certify that the deliberations of the Board on the adoption of said 
resolution were conducted openly, that the vote on the adoption of said resolution was 
taken openly, that said meeting was held at a specified time and place convenient to 
the public, that notice of said meeting was duly given to all of the news media 
requesting such notice, that an agenda for said meeting was posted at the location 
where said meeting was held and at the principal office of the Board at least 72 hours 
in advance of the holding of said meeting, that a true, correct and complete copy of 
said agenda as so posted is attached hereto as Exhibit A, that at least one copy of said 
agenda was continuously available for public review during the entire 72-hour period 
preceding said meeting, that said meeting was called and held in strict compliance 
with the provisions of the Open Meetings Act of the State of Illinois, as amended, and 
with the provisions of the Public Community College Act of the State of Illinois, as 
amended, and that the Board has complied with all of the provisions of said Act and 

Board Book Page 63



-2- 

said Act and with all of the procedural rules of the Board in the conduct of said 
meeting and in the adoption of said resolution. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official signature, this 9th day of April, 
2018. 

_______________________________________ 
Secretary, Board of Trustees 

 

Board Book Page 64



 

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
 )  SS 
COUNTY OF COLES ) 

NO PETITION CERTIFICATE 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting 

Secretary of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Community College District 

No. 517, Counties of Coles, Christian, Clark, Clay, Crawford, Cumberland, Douglas, 

Edgar, Effingham, Fayette, Jasper, Macon, Montgomery, Moultrie and Shelby and 

State of Illinois (the “District”), and as such official I do further certify that pursuant to a 

resolution entitled: 

RESOLUTION setting forth and describing in detail claims 
heretofore authorized and allowed for proper community 
college purposes which are presently outstanding and 
unpaid, declaring the intention to avail of the provisions of 
Article 3A of the Public Community College Act of the State 
of Illinois, as amended, and to issue bonds for the purpose 
of paying claims against Board of Trustees of Community 
College District No. 517, Counties of Coles, Christian, Clark, 
Clay, Crawford, Cumberland, Douglas, Edgar, Effingham, 
Fayette, Jasper, Macon, Montgomery, Moultrie and Shelby 
and State of Illinois, and directing that notice of such 
intention be published as provided by law. 

(the “Resolution”) duly adopted by the Board on the 9th day of April, 2018, notice of 

intention of the District to issue $17,000,000 Funding Bonds (the “Notice”) was 

published on the ____ day of April, 2018, in the Journal Gazette &-Times Courier, the 

same being a newspaper of general circulation in the District, and was not posted 

electronically on the District’s World Wide Web pages. 

I do further certify that no petition has ever been filed in my office as Secretary 

of the Board or has ever been presented to me as such official requesting that the 

proposition to issue said bonds be submitted to the voters of the District, but that I 

provided a petition form regarding the same to every individual requesting one. 

Board Book Page 65



-2- 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official signature, this _____ day of April, 

2018. 

_______________________________________ 
Secretary, Board of Trustees 

 

Board Book Page 66



 

 

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
 )  SS 
COUNTY OF COLES ) 

PETITION 

We, the undersigned, do hereby certify that we are voters of Community College District 
No. 517, Counties of Coles, Christian, Clark, Clay, Crawford, Cumberland, Douglas, Edgar, Effingham, 
Fayette, Jasper, Macon, Montgomery, Moultrie and Shelby and State of Illinois, and as such voters, we 
do hereby request that the following proposition be submitted to the voters of said Community College 
District:  “Shall the Board of Trustees of Lake Land Community College District No. 517, Counties of 
Coles, Christian, Clark, Clay, Crawford, Cumberland, Douglas, Edgar, Effingham, Fayette, Jasper, 
Macon, Montgomery, Moultrie and Shelby and State of Illinois, be authorized to issue $17,000,000 
bonds for the purpose of paying claims against said Community College District as provided for by 
Article 3A (Sections 3A-6 to 3A-9, inclusive) of the Public Community College Act?”; and we do hereby 
further request that the Secretary of said Board of Trustees of said Community College District certify 
said proposition to the County Clerks of The Counties of Coles, Christian, Clark, Clay, Crawford, 
Cumberland, Douglas, Edgar, Effingham, Fayette, Jasper, Macon, Montgomery, Moultrie and Shelby, for 
submission to said voters at the election to be held on the 6th day of November, 2018: 

   CITY, 
  STREET ADDRESS OR VILLAGE 
 SIGNATURE RURAL ROUTE NUMBER OR TOWN COUNTY 

______________________ ______________________, ____________, ____________ County, Illinois 
______________________ ______________________, ____________, ____________ County, Illinois 
______________________ ______________________, ____________, ____________ County, Illinois 
______________________ ______________________, ____________, ____________ County, Illinois 
______________________ ______________________, ____________, ____________ County, Illinois 
______________________ ______________________, ____________, ____________ County, Illinois 
______________________ ______________________, ____________, ____________ County, Illinois 
______________________ ______________________, ____________, ____________ County, Illinois 
______________________ ______________________, ____________, ____________ County, Illinois 

The undersigned, being first duly sworn, deposes and certifies that he or she is at least 18 years 
of age, his or her residence address is _______________________________________ (Street Address), 
________________________ (City, Village or Town), ________________ County, ________________ (State), 
that he or she is a citizen of the United States of America, that the signatures on the foregoing petition 
were signed in his or her presence and are genuine, that to the best of his or her knowledge and belief 
the persons so signing were at the time of signing said petition registered voters of said Community 
College District and that their respective residences are correctly stated therein. 

 ______________________________________________  
Signed and sworn to before me this 
____ day of ____________, 2018. 

___________________________________ 
Illinois Notary Public 

My commission expires _________________ 

(NOTARY SEAL) 

Board Book Page 67



BINA Resolution 
2261394 

MINUTES of a regular public meeting of the Board of 
Trustees of Community College District No. 517, Counties 
of Coles, Christian, Clark, Clay, Crawford, Cumberland, 
Douglas, Edgar, Effingham, Fayette, Jasper, Macon, 
Montgomery, Moultrie and Shelby and State of Illinois, held 
in Webb Hall Room 081, 5001 Lake Land Boulevard, 
Mattoon, Illinois, in said Community College District at 
6:00 o’clock P.M, on the 9th day of April, 2018. 

 * * * 

The meeting was called to order by the Chair, and upon the roll being called, 

Dave Storm, the Chair, and the following Trustees were physically present at said 

location:   

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________ and ________________________ (non-voting student 

trustee). 

The following Trustees were allowed by a majority of the Trustees of the Board 

of Trustees in accordance with and to the extent allowed by rules adopted by the 

Board of Trustees to attend the meeting by video or audio conference: ______________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

No Trustee was not permitted to attend the meeting by video or audio 

conference. 

The following Trustees were absent and did not participate in the meeting in 

any manner or to any extent whatsoever: _________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

The Chair announced that the Bond Issue Notification Act requires that a public 

hearing be called and held in connection with the sale of bonds in the amount of 

Board Book Page 68



 -2- 

$17,000,000 for the purpose of paying claims against the District and that the Board of 

Trustees would consider the adoption of a resolution calling such public hearing. 

Whereupon Trustee ______________________ presented and the Secretary read 

by title a resolution as follows, a copy of which was provided to each Trustee of the 

Board of Trustees prior to said meeting  

and to everyone in attendance at said meeting who requested a copy: 

Board Book Page 69



 

Lake Land College 
Board of Trustees 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 0418-013   DATE: April 9, 2018 

 

RESOLUTION calling a public hearing concerning the intent of the 
Board of Trustees of Community College District No. 517, 
Counties of Coles, Christian, Clark, Clay, Crawford, 
Cumberland, Douglas, Edgar, Effingham, Fayette, Jasper, 
Macon, Montgomery, Moultrie and Shelby and State of Illinois, 
to sell $17,000,000 Funding Bonds for the purpose of paying 
claims against said Community College District. 

 * * * 

WHEREAS, Community College District No. 517, Counties of Coles, Christian, 

Clark, Clay, Crawford, Cumberland, Douglas, Edgar, Effingham, Fayette, Jasper, 

Macon, Montgomery, Moultrie and Shelby and State of Illinois (the “District”), is a 

duly organized and existing community college district created under the provisions 

of the laws of the State of Illinois, and is now operating under the provisions of the 

Public Community College Act of the State of Illinois, and all laws amendatory thereof 

and supplementary thereto, including the Local Government Debt Reform Act of the 

State of Illinois, as amended; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the District (the “Board”) intends to sell 

bonds in the amount of $17,000,000 for the purpose of paying claims against the 

District (the “Bonds”); and 

Board Book Page 70



 -2- 

WHEREAS, the Bond Issue Notification Act of the State of Illinois, as amended, 

requires the Board to hold a public hearing concerning the Board’s intent to sell the 

Bonds before adopting a resolution providing for the sale of the Bonds: 

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It and It Is Hereby Resolved by the Board of Trustees of 

Community College District No. 517, Counties of Coles, Christian, Clark, Clay, 

Crawford, Cumberland, Douglas, Edgar, Effingham, Fayette, Jasper, Macon, 

Montgomery, Moultrie and Shelby and State of Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. Incorporation of Preambles.  The Board hereby finds that all of the 

recitals contained in the preambles to this Resolution are full, true and correct and 

does incorporate them into this Resolution by reference. 

 Section 2. Public Hearing.  The Board hereby calls a public hearing to be held 

at 6:00 o’clock P.M. on the 14th day of May, 2018, in Webb Hall Room 081, 5001 Lake 

Land Boulevard, Mattoon, Illinois, in the District, concerning the Board’s intent to sell 

the Bonds and to receive public comments regarding the proposal to sell the Bonds 

(the “Hearing”). 

 Section 3. Notice.  The Secretary of the Board (the “Secretary”) shall 

(i) publish notice of the Hearing at least once in the Journal Gazette &-Times Courier, 

the same being a newspaper of general circulation in the District, not less than 7 nor 

more than 30 days before the date of the Hearing and (ii) post at least 72 hours before 

the Hearing a copy of said notice at the principal office of the Board, which notice will 

be continuously available for public review during the entire 72-hour period preceding 

the Hearing. 

 Section 4. Form of Notice.  Notice of the Hearing shall appear above the 

name of the Secretary and shall be in substantially the following form: 

Board Book Page 71



 -3- 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING CONCERNING THE INTENT OF 
THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF  

COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 517, COUNTIES OF COLES, CHRISTIAN, CLARK, CLAY, 
CRAWFORD, CUMBERLAND, DOUGLAS, EDGAR, EFFINGHAM, FAYETTE, JASPER, MACON, 

MONTGOMERY, MOULTRIE AND SHELBY AND STATE OF ILLINOIS 
TO SELL $17,000,000 FUNDING BONDS 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Community College District No. 517, 
Counties of Coles, Christian, Clark, Clay, Crawford, Cumberland, Douglas, Edgar, 
Effingham, Fayette, Jasper, Macon, Montgomery, Moultrie and Shelby and State of 
Illinois (the “District”), will hold a public hearing on the 14th day of May, 2018, at 
6:00 o’clock P.M.  The hearing will be held in Webb Hall Room 081, 5001 Lake Land 
Boulevard, Mattoon, Illinois.  The purpose of the hearing will be to receive public 
comments on the proposal to sell bonds of the District in the amount of $17,000,000 
for the purpose of paying claims against the District. 

By resolution of the Board of Trustees of Community College District No. 517, 
Counties of Coles, Christian, Clark, Clay, Crawford, Cumberland, Douglas, Edgar, 
Effingham, Fayette, Jasper, Macon, Montgomery, Moultrie and Shelby and State of 
Illinois. 

DATED the 9th day of April, 2018. 

Ann Deters  
Secretary, Board of Trustees, Community 

College District No. 517, Counties of 
Coles, Christian, Clark, Clay, Crawford, 
Cumberland, Douglas, Edgar, Effingham, 
Fayette, Jasper, Macon, Montgomery, 
Moultrie and Shelby and State of Illinois 

 

Board Book Page 72



 -4- 

 Section 5. Hearing Requirements.  At the Hearing, the Board shall explain the 

reasons for the proposed bond issue and permit persons desiring to be heard an 

opportunity to present written or oral testimony within reasonable time limits.  The 

Board shall not adopt a resolution selling the Bonds for a period of seven (7) days after 

the final adjournment of the Hearing. 

 Section 6. Severability.  If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this 

Resolution shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or 

unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of 

the remaining provisions of this Resolution. 

 Section 7. Repeal.  All resolutions and parts thereof in conflict herewith be and 

the same are hereby repealed and this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 

forthwith upon its adoption. 

Adopted April 9, 2018. 

_______________________________________ 
Chair, Board of Trustees 

_______________________________________ 
Secretary, Board of Trustees 

Board Book Page 73



 

Trustee ________________________ moved and Trustee ________________________ 

seconded the motion that said resolution as presented and read by title be adopted. 

After a full discussion thereof, the Chair directed that the roll be called for a vote 

upon the motion to adopt said resolution. 

Upon the roll being called, the following Trustees voted AYE: _________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

The following Trustees voted NAY: _________________________________________ 

Whereupon the Chair declared the motion carried and said resolution adopted, 

approved and signed the same in open meeting and directed the Secretary to record 

the same in the records of the Board of Trustees of Community College District 

No. 517, Counties of Coles, Christian, Clark, Clay, Crawford, Cumberland, Douglas, 

Edgar, Effingham, Fayette, Jasper, Macon, Montgomery, Moultrie and Shelby and 

State of Illinois, which was done. 

Other business not pertinent to the adoption of said resolution was duly 

transacted at the meeting. 

Upon motion duly made, seconded and carried, the meeting was adjourned. 

_______________________________________ 
Secretary, Board of Trustees 

 

Board Book Page 74



 

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
 )  SS 
COUNTY OF COLES ) 

CERTIFICATION OF MINUTES AND RESOLUTION 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting 
Secretary of the Board of Trustees of Community College District No. 517, Counties of 
Coles, Christian, Clark, Clay, Crawford, Cumberland, Douglas, Edgar, Effingham, 
Fayette, Jasper, Macon, Montgomery, Moultrie and Shelby and State of Illinois (the 
“Board”), and as such official I am the keeper of the records and files of the Board. 

I do further certify that the foregoing constitutes a full, true and complete 
transcript of the minutes of the meeting of the Board held on the 9th day of April, 
2018, insofar as same relates to the adoption of a resolution entitled: 

RESOLUTION calling a public hearing concerning the intent of the 
Board of Trustees of Community College District No. 517, 
Counties of Coles, Christian, Clark, Clay, Crawford, 
Cumberland, Douglas, Edgar, Effingham, Fayette, Jasper, 
Macon, Montgomery, Moultrie and Shelby and State of Illinois, 
to sell $17,000,000 Funding Bonds for the purpose of paying 
claims against said Community College District. 

a true, correct and complete copy of which said resolution as adopted at said meeting 
appears in the foregoing transcript of the minutes of said meeting. 

I do further certify that the deliberations of the Board on the adoption of said 
resolution were conducted openly, that the vote on the adoption of said resolution was 
taken openly, that said meeting was called and held at a specified time and place 
convenient to the public, that notice of said meeting was duly given to all of the news 
media requesting such notice, that an agenda for said meeting was posted at the 
location where said meeting was held and at the principal office of the Board at least 
72 hours in advance of the holding of said meeting, that at least one copy of said 
agenda was continuously available for public review during the entire 72-hour period 
preceding said meeting, that a true, correct and complete copy of said agenda as so 
posted is attached hereto as Exhibit A, that said meeting was called and held in strict 
compliance with the provisions of the Open Meetings Act of the State of Illinois, as 
amended, the Public Community College Act of the State of Illinois, as amended, and 
the Bond Issue Notification Act of the State of Illinois, as amended, and that the Board 
has complied with all of the provisions of said Acts and with all of the procedural rules 
of the Board. 
  

Board Book Page 75



 -2- 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official signature, 9th day of April, 2018. 

_______________________________________ 
Secretary, Board of Trustees 

 

Board Book Page 76



LAKE LAND COLLEGE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

HUMAN RESOURCES REPORT 
April 09, 2018 

 
 
 
The following employees are recommended for leave 
 
 Conour, Marge FMLA 05/14/2018-08/05/2018 
 Niemerg, Kellie FMLA 04/21/2018-07/15/2018 
 Schlechte, Gerry FMLA 02/26/2018-03/07/2018 
 
 
Additional Appointments 
  The following employees are recommended for additional appointments 
   Position Effective Date 
Part-time 
    Horton, Jesse Adjunct Faculty Social Science Sub 03/16/2018 
    Primary Position is Adj Faculty Math/Science                 
    Huang, Hsin Hui Tutor-Disability Services - Student 12/21/2017 
    Primary Position is Counseling Clerical Worker             
    Hunt, Richard Center for Business and Industry Instr 03/01/2018 
    Primary Position is CBI Leadership Instr                
    Shumard-Shelton, Lisa Adjunct Faculty Humanities Division Sub 03/26/2018 
    Primary Position is Director of Dual Credit                  
    Smithenry, Kimberly Allied Health LPN Substitute Instr 03/02/2018 
    Primary Position is Nursing Instructor      
                  
Part-time - Grant Funded 
    Allen, Charles Adult Education Welding Instructor 03/14/2018 
    Primary Position is Adult Ed Adjunct Faculty                 
    Daniels, Tori Pathways Substitute Instructor 03/22/2018 
    Primary Position is Pathways Classroom Assistant             
    Gravatt, Tomi Adjunct DOC College Funded Instructor 03/12/2018 
    Primary Position is Assoc Dean – IYC Harrisburg                   
    Huang, Hsin Hui Tutor-Student Carl Perkins 12/21/2017 
    Primary Position is Counseling Clerical Worker             
    Rios, Lisa Adjunct DOC College Funded Instructor 03/12/2018 
    Primary Position is Corr Ofc Asst - East Moline CC             
    Starwalt, William Perkins Student Worker - Humanities 04/05/2018 
    Primary Position is Newspaper Ed Student News  
               
  
 
 

Board Book Page 77



End Additional Appointments 
  The following employees are ending their additional appointment 
      Position Effective Date 
Full-time 
    Blaser, Tara Humanities Substitute Instructor  03/23/2018 
    Caldwell, Nancy Humanities Substitute Instructor 03/23/2018 
    Cohan, Michael Humanities Substitute Instructor 03/23/2018 
    Munger, James CBI Instructor 03/20/2018 
    Sims, Kyle CBI Instructor 03/20/2018 
 
Part-time 
    Bartholomew, Mary  TRIO Tutor 03/22/2018 
    Beliz, Jenny  TRIO Tutor 03/22/2018 
    Boyer, Natalie  Humanities Substitute Instructor 03/23/2018 
    Butler, Patricia  TRIO Tutor 03/22/2018 
    Davison, Larry  CBI Instructor 03/20/2018 
    Flier-Layton, Sara  Tutor Disability Services 03/23/2018 
    Gradle, Scott  TRIO Tutor 03/22/2018 
    Guyette, Samuel  Perkins Test Proctor 03/29/2018 
    Guyette, Samuel  Tutor 03/22/2018 
    Janes, Thomas  Tutor 03/29/2018 
    Key, Joanna  TRIO Tutor 03/22/2018 
    Kingery, Rachael  Perkins Assistant 03/15/2018 
    Lytle, Brianna  TRIO Tutor 03/22/2018 
    Pearcy, Tamara  TRIO Tutor 03/22/2018 
    Powell, Clyde  Tutor TRIO & TRIO SSS 03/22/2018 
    Reardon, Jenalee  TRIO Tutor 03/22/2018 
    Smith, Terry  CBI Instructor & Trainer 03/20/2018 
    Sotomayor, Edgardo  Tech Team Intern 03/29/2018 
    Stolz, Cheryl  Adult Education Instructor 03/29/2018 
    Taylor, Virginia  Adjunct DOC Faculty 03/26/2018 
    Tshilombo, Gael  TRIO SSS Tutor 03/22/2018 
    Turner, Gail  Adult Education Instructor 03/29/2018 
    Wilson-Kuhn, Dennise  CBI Instructor 03/20/2018 
    Woolworth, Wendy  TRIO Tutor 03/22/2018 
  
New Hire-Employees 
  The following employees are recommended for hire 
       Position Effective Date 
Unpaid Volunteer 
    Patton, Anna Dual Credit Instructor 01/10/2018 
    Strange, James Dual Credit Instructor 03/23/2018 
 
 
 
 

Board Book Page 78



Full-time - Grant Funded 
  Barker, Danielle Correctional Horticulture Instructor 04/17/2018 
  at Illinois River CC 
 Collins, Deborah Associate Dean of Illinois River CC 04/17/2018 
 Jones, Michael Commercial Custodian Instructor 04/16/2018 
  at Kewanee Re-entry Center 
 Marceau, David Correctional Construction Occupations  04/02/2018 
  at East Moline CC 
 Swindle, Jeremy Associate Dean of Graham CC 04/10/2018 
     
Part-time 
    Beavers, Gary Custodian 03/26/2018 
    Hunt, Richard CBI Leadership Instructor 01/01/2018 
    Staub, Gabrielle Fitness Center Specialist 01/29/2018 
    Wake, Jackie Professional Development Support 03/26/2018 
 
Part-time - Grant Funded 
    Henninger, Jenine Adjunct DOC Instructor 03/12/2018 
    Marasa, Jill Adjunct DOC Instructor 03/26/2018 
    Verdin, Brandy TRIO SSS Student Assistant 02/02/2018 
     
College Work Studys 
 Bishop, Andrew College Work Study - Business 03/02/2018 
    Brown, Kristina College Work Study - Early Childhood Edu 02/01/2018 
     Shick, Nathaniel College Work Study - Mailroom 02/26/2018 
     Spence, Kiley College Work Study - Early Childhood Edu 02/27/2018 
  
Terminations/Resignations 
  The following employees are terminating employment 
      Position Effective Date 
Unpaid Volunteer 
    Chowning, Milah Tech Team Intern 03/29/2018 
    Evans, Kasey College Advancement Intern 03/28/2018 
    Kanizer, Tyler Tech Team Intern 03/29/2018 
    Seibert, Adam Tech Team Intern 03/29/2018 
 
Full-time 
 Corning, Julie Corr Office Asst - Graham CC 04/30/2018 
 Risley, Kala Corr Office Asst - Southwestern IL CC 04/20/2018 
  
Part-time 
    Boulu, Bernie International Stu Ambassador 03/08/2018 
    Deters, Timothy Physical Plant Assistant 03/08/2018 
    Graham, Conner Tutor - Student Lrng Asst Ctr 03/23/2018 
    Hatcher, Tatum Pathways Classroom Assistant 03/02/2018 
    Kull, Bailey Tutor  03/29/2018 

Board Book Page 79



    Luesse, Aaron Tutor - Student Lrng Asst Ctr 03/23/2018 
    Martinez Montes de Oca,   International Student Ambassador 03/08/2018 
    Perry, Dannie Alternative Education Instructor 03/29/2018 
    Pope, Peggy Adj Doc Instructor 10/13/2017 
    Reardon, Jenalee Tutor - Assoc Community Ed 03/29/2018 
    Shaw, Lorri Kluthe Test Proctor 02/15/2018 
    Spaulding, Sandra Professional Development Support 03/06/2018 
    Wediko, Emmanuel International Student Ambassador 03/08/2018 
 
College Work Studys     
 Jones, Kimberli College Work Study - TRIO SSS 03/22/2018 
     Powers, Taylor College Work Study - Academic Services 03/16/2018 
  
Transfers/Promotions 
  The following employees are recommended for a change in position 
      Position Effective Date 
Full-time - Grant Funded 
     
  Coit, Jonathan Outreach Advisor & Office Coordinator 04/10/2018 
  Transferring from:  Outreach Advisor/Mentor (TRIO) pt 
 Scott, Garry Associate Dean – Joliet Treatment Center 04/02/2018 
  Transferring from:  Corr Career Tech Instr - Dixon CC 
 
  

Board Book Page 80


	TITLEPG.TLE Regular meeting
	Table of Contents April 2018 Board Book
	Resolution Authorizing College Treasurer to Act as Fiscal Agent
	April 2018 PTK Memo
	Lensink Nomination Letter from Sullivan Feb 2018 Signed Copy
	Calendar of Events 2018
	April 2018 SGA and Trustee Results Memo
	SGA Election Results
	Human Subject Reseach Policy 1129 and 0645 Clarification Packet
	Research Policy Memo 2
	1129.POL
	0645.pol

	FY2018 - February Financials Packet
	Salary Scale Recommendation - FY2019
	Memo - gift to workforce for Toshiba Injection Molding Press
	Subway Memo and Amendment
	Property  Casualty Insurance Recommendation packet
	Funding Resolution of Intent
	BINA Resolution
	April 9 2018 Human Resources Report



